
NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
························--··················X 
In the Mauer of 

Wellfleet New York Insurance Company No. 2021-0l l0·S 

Respondent. 

··· · ··-·------·---·······-·-------·-- · ·--···X 

CONSENT ORDER 

WHEREAS, the Departrnenl of Financial Services {hereinafter "Deparlment") conducted a 

review of submissions by Wellfleet New York Insurance Company (hereinafter "Respondent") 

required by section 343 of the New York State Tnsuruncc Law reporting Respondent's compliance 

with federal and state mental health and substnnce use disorder parity laws e'pnrity laws") for 

health insurance policies issued in New York; and 

WHEREAS, the Department concluded that Respondent's report for the calendar year 2018 

show instances of oon•compliance with parity laws; and 

WHEREAS, the Department and Respondenl are willing io resolve the matters cited herein 

in lieu of proceeding by notice and hearing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this Consent Order contains the Department's findings and the relief 

agreed 10 by the Department and Respondent. 



BACI GROUND 

I. Respondent is a domestic insurance company authorized by Article 42 or the New York 

lnsurnncc Law 11) issue accident and health insurance policies in New York State. Respondcnl 

sold comprehensive health insumncc policies in New York Stale in 20 l7 and 2018. 

2. The frdernl i'vlenwl Health Parity :md Addicti~)n Equity Act and its impkmcnting regulations 

("i'vtlWAEi\") require:; insurers to provide mental health und substance use disorder 

("Mll!SlJIY) bcnclits in parity with mcdi~'.Hl nnd surgical ("mcd/surg") bcnetits . An insurer may 

not npply nny quantitative treatment limitation ("QTL") lo MHiSlJD benefits in uny benefit 

clnssilication that is more restrictive than the predominant financial requirement or treatment 

limitation of thui type applied to substantially all med/surg benelits in the same clnssitication 

per 42 U.S.C §§ 300gg-26, and 45 C.F.R § 146. I36(c)(2)(i). 

3. New York fmmrancc Law § 3221 (l) prohibits insur~rs from applying finnnciol rcquircmenis or 

treatment limitations to substance use disorder benelits that nr◊ more restrictive than the 

predominunt timrncinl requirements and treatment limitations applied to substilntinlly all 

med/sLu·g b,rnefits covered by the policy. 

4. Fi::dcrnl regulation 45 C.F.R. § I46. l36(h) prohibits the sale or n h~lth insurance coverage that 

does 1101 comply with MHPAEA. 

s. New York Insurance Low § 343 requires insurers to submit information ("343 Repo11s") about 

the cost-shnring requirements for policies offor.:d i11 the individual, small and hwgc group 

markets, including but nol limited to co-pays and coinsurance, for med/surg benefits, nnd 

MH/SUD benefits. 

6. Respondent submilled 343 Reports for cnlenifar yenrs 201 7 :mcl 2018. Based on the information 

provided by Respondent for calendar year 20 I8. the Department required Respondent to 

complete a worksheet for identified policies demonstrating that the linancial requirements 

imposed on MH/SUD bcnelils complied with MI-IPAEA and New York ·Insurance Law. The 

completed worksheets demonstrated thai in calendar year 2018, Respondent sold policies that 
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imposed Cl)St-.sharing on ~-III/SUD benefits in tile oulputiont in-network onice subclnssilicntion 

that was more restrictive tluu1 the prcdominnnt level imposed on med/surg benefits. Further. 

Resp()ndcnt sold policies thnt imposed a type of' cost sharing on MI·I/SUD benelils in th<: 

outpatient in-network other n.nd outpatient out-of-network other subclassilications lhnt was not 

imposed on substantinlly all of the med/surg bendits. In tolnl, nine thousand one hundred and 

scn~nty-onc (9.171) violations were found on si:,;; (6) separate policies, impacting seven thousand 

nine hundr<!d f'ourk'cn (7,914) insureds, in contrnvention to 45 CFR § l46.136(h), New York 

Insurance Law§ 3221(1). 

FlNDfNGS 

7. Respondent, for calcndnr year 2018, violated New York State Insurance Law a~d MHPAEA 

by selling policies thut required insureds to either pay a type of cost share for MI-VSUD 

bendits that was 1101 applied !o substantfolly all medical/surgical benefits, or pay an amount of 

cost share for tv1H/SUD benefits that was not the predominant level of cost shnrc applied to 

medical/surgical bencfiis in the same classitication. 

VlOLATIONS 

8. By reason of the foregoing, Respondent violated New York Insurance Law§ 3221(1) and 45 CFR 

§ 146.1 36(c)(2) and (h). 

AGREEMENT 

IT [S HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED by Respondent, its successors, aud 

assigns (on behnlfofits agents, representatives, employees, parent compm1y, holding company, ,md 

any corporation, subsidiary, or division through which Respondent operates) that: 

9. Respondent shall take all necessary sleps to comply with pari ly laws in the f\Jturc. 
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lO. No bler 1ha11 thirly (30) dnys l'rnm the da1c l) i' this OrJcr. Respondent shall submit to lhl: 

l>cpiwtmcnt a ,vTittcn plan 1ha1 identifies all insureds impuc:11:J by lksponcknl ' .s violations cilcu 

nbovc, the p t\)Cc~s by which it will Jc:tcrminc how much, if any, rcstillltion is ,)wed. including 

imcr<'!'.1 to insureds calculated accorJing to Ne"· York Insurance Lnw § 3224-a(c). nnd a 

ri:aSl)llllbk timclinc l'or rq,rnccssing the claims nnd n.:funding any amounts due to its insureds. 

Thcm1t'tcr, Respondent shall submit a \\Tillcn report on a monthly bnsis demonstrating 

~igni ficant progrl'SS in identifying and rd\mding amo\mts due to impac1cd i1m1rcds. Each report 

shnll include the number of insureds impac1cd, the numbcr of claims involved, the 1unounl of 

l'l'~li tution for each idcntilicd i11surcd, nnd the number or insureds for whom Respondent htls 

pr0"idcd re funds nt the time of the report. 

l l. For nil policies containing violmions in calendar year 20 l S cited ,1bove th:ll were offered in 

calendar year 2017. Respondent must comph:lt' the worksheet referenced in parngraph 6. 

Respondent :;lwll follow the processes set fonh in parngraph l 0 for any ins1anccs of 11on­

compliancc with parity laws for calendar year 20 17. 

MONlffAR\' PENALTY 

12. Within seven (7) dnys of the execution of this Consent Order, Rcgpondcnt shal l pay a civil 

p..:nalty of four hundred and twcnty-live thousnnct dollars ($425,000.00). Respondent ngrccs 

that it will not claim, nssert , or apply for a .t,\X deduction or tax credit with regard to any U.S. 

foclcral, state or local lox. directly or ind irec1ly, for ,my portion or the civil moncttuy penalty 

pai<l pursuant to this Consent Order. 

13. The abo\'t: referenced payment shal l be p:1yabk lo the New York State [kpnrtmenl of 

Financial Services uccount al JP Morgnn Cha:;c Bank, N.A. via electronic trnnsfor in 

accordance with the Department's instructions. 

BRl~ACH OF T IH: CONS!i:N't' ORDER 

I 4. In the event lhat the Department bclicws Respondent to be materially in breach of this Consent 

Order (''Breach''), the DepJrtmenl wil Iprovide 1,Tiuen notice ofsuch Breach to Respondent and 
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Respondent must, within ten ( I 0) business doys from the dnte of receipt of said notice, or on a 

later dote ifso determined in lhe sole discretion of the Dcpn1101en1, appear before tb.e Department 

nnd hnve an opportnnity to rebut tJ1e Depar!ment's contention that a Breach has occurred and, 

to the extent pertinent, to demonstrate that any such Breach is not material or has been cured. 

· 15. Respondent understands and agrees llrnt Respondent's failure to appear before the Departmen1 

to make the required demonstration within the specified period as set forth herein is presumptive 

evidence of Respondent's Breach. Upon a finding of Breach, the Department has all the 

remedies available to it under New York or other applicable laws nnd may use any and all 

evidence available to the Department for all ensuing examinations, hearings, notices, orders, and 

other remedies that may be ~wailable undel' Now Y()rk or othel' applicable laws. 

OTHER PROVISIONS 

16. If Respondent defaults on any of its obligations under this Consent Order, the Department may 

terminate this Consent Order, at its sole discretion, upon ten (I 0) clays' written notice to 

Respondent. In the event of such termination, Respondent expressly agrees and acknowledges 

tliat this Consent Order shall in no way bar or otherwise preclude the Department from 

commencing, conducting, or prosecuting any investigation, action, or proceeding, however 

denominated, related to the Consent Order, against Respondent or from using in any way the 

statements, d()cuments, or other materials produced or provided by Respondent prior to or after 

the date of this Consent Order, including, without limitation, such statements, documents, or 

other materials, ifany, provided for purposes of settlement negotiations. 

17. The Department has agreed to lhe terms of this Consent Order based on, among oLher things, 

representations made to the Department by Respondent and the Department's own factual 

examinatfon. To the extent that representations made by Respondent are la~er found to be 

materially incomplete or inaccurate, this Consent Order or certain provisions t11ereof are 

voidable by the Department in iis sole discretion. 
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IS . Upon the request or the Depnrtm~11l, Respondent shnll providu 1111 documcnl:i!ion and 

information ntcessary for the Dcpnt!mcnt to verify compliunce with this Consent Order. 

19. All notices, reports. requests. certifications, and other com1mmications to the Department 

n:garding this Con~ent Order shall be in writing and shall be directed as follows: 

1f to t11e Department: 

New York State Depanmcnt of Financial Servicl!s 
One Sra1e Street, 19th Floor 
New York, NY 10004-1511 
Attention: My Chi 1\), Executiv~ Deputy Superintendent for Insurance 
Email: Mentalhealthpari1y@dts.ny.gov 

lf ln the Company: 

Wellllect New York fnsurance CompMy 
5814 Reed Road 
Fort Wayne, IN 46835 
Att~ntion: Angela Adams, Vice President & General Counsel, MedPro Group Inc. 
Ema.ii: Angela.Adams@medpro.com 

20. This Consent Order and any dispute thereunder shall be govemed by the laws of the Smie of 

New York without regard to any conflicts of laws principles. 

21. Respondent waives its right to further notice and hearing in this matter as to any allegations of 

past violations up to and including the Effective Df\te and agrees that no provision oflhe Consent 

Order is sub}:!ct io review in any court or tribunal outside the Dcparlmenl. 

22. This Consent Order may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf of 

all parties to this Consent Order. 

23. This Consent Order constitutes the entire agreement between the Department and Respondent 

relating to the violations identified herein and supersedes any prior communication, 

understanding, or agreement, whether written or oral, concerning the st1bjcc1 1ni-1tter of this 
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Consent Order. No inducement. promi~e. unde~'1anding, condition. or \\'arrunty not set forth in 

thi:- Consent Order ha5 been relied t1pon b} any party 10 this Consent Order. 

24. In the event that one or more provisions contnined in this Consent Order shall for any reason be 

held invalid. illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality. or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other pro,·ision of this Consent Order. 

25. Upon execution by thl! ponies to this Consent Order, no further action ,,ill be taken b)' the 

Department against Respondent for the conduct set fort h in this Consent Order. subject to the 

tenns ofthis Consent Order. 

26. This Consent Order mil)' be executed in one or more counterparts and shall become effective 

\\'hen such cot1nterparts have been signed by each of the parties hereto nnd So Ordered by the 

Superintendent offinanc ial Services. 

Wellfleet New York Insurance Company 

~ q,,~ Dated: 7 / Y' / c.,r...' 2- \By: ----------
;(n'W D1GtlH);!iO 

l'r~sident and Chief Executive Of1iccr 

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF FlNANt~lt\L ':{ER VICES 

By: - '------- Datd: __;-z___(_r_,_(_ 2._1___ 
My Chi To 
Executive Deputy Superintendent for lnsuran~c 

TIIE FOREGOING CO!'-lSENT ORDER IS HF.REBY APPROvED. 

By: 

Adrienne A. Harris 
S\cting Superintendent ot Fi~ancial Services 
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